## EXECUTIVE

## TUESDAY, 1 MAY 2018

Present:

Councillors Christophers (Leader), Clemens (Deputy Leader), Barker, Goodey, Bullivant, Lake and Russell

<u>Members Attendance:</u> Councillors Haines, G Hook, Golder, Dewhirst and Prowse

Officers in Attendance: Phil Shears, Managing Director Neil Aggett, Democratic Services Manager & Monitoring Officer Simon Thornley, Business Manager - Spatial Planning Tony Watson, Business Manager - Economy & Assets Fergus Pate, Principal Delivery Officer Neil Blaney, Economy Manager Chris Braines, Waste & Cleansing Manager David Kiernan, Principal Planning Policy Officer Sarah Selway, Democratic Services Manager (Exeter City Council)

#### These decisions will take effect from 10.00 a.m. on Tuesday 8 May 2018 unless called-in or identified as urgent in the minute

#### 418. MINUTES

Minutes of the meeting on 5 April 2018 were confirmed, approved and signed as a correct record.

#### 419. NEWTON ABBOT PRIMARY SCHOOL

The Leader advised that the annual visit of the Newton Abbot Primary Schools had taken place recently. This had been an entertaining day and the pupils had given feedback on the Local Plan and the Leisure Strategic Plan.

#### 420. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Bullivant declared an interest in respect of Minute no.398 (Local Plan Review: Issues Consultation including supporting documents) as his son was a Local Estate Agent in the area and knew some of the landowners. He did not take part in the debate and did not vote (Code of Conduct for Members - Paragraph 14).

#### 421. NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 4.5(L)

Consideration was given to the following Notice of Motion submitted by Councillor Hook and supported by Councillors Connett, Dewhirst, Keeling, Nutley and Rollason at the Full Council meeting on 22 February 2018 and referred to the Executive for consideration.

This Council notes with concern:

- That 300 million tonnes of new plastic is made each year, half of which is for single use plastic such as packaging and convenience foods. In many cases, such as plastic straws, takeaway food containers and coffee cups, there are practical alternatives available that are either reusable or sustainable.
- That in 2016, the Ellen MacArthur Foundation estimated that by weight, there could be more plastic in our oceans than fish, as soon as 2050. As plastics are durable and strong they will stay in the environment for up to an estimated 600 years. (Columbia University).
- That marine plastic leads to coastal/offshore dead zones, entanglement, death through ingestion, toxic transfer and, once degraded into micro plastics, contamination of the food chain... including our own. We are quite literally eating the plastic that has ended up in our seas.

Council welcomes:

- Moves towards Deposit Return Schemes
- The success of the "Plastic Bag Levy" introduced by the Coalition Government of 2010-15, which has lead to a 90% reduction in plastic bag usage.
- The success reported from councils both in Devon and around the country in reducing plastic waste and improving recycling figures by the introduction of a three weekly residual waste service.

Therefore this council commits to playing its full role in reducing plastic waste, specifically:

- That the council will undertake an audit, within existing resources, of single use plastics used by the Authority and seek to replace with sustainable or renewable alternatives wherever practical.
- That the council will play its part in educating the public about plastic waste, specifically by including information on reducing plastic waste in both online and written materials.
- That the council will introduce, following appropriate trials, a three weekly residual waste collection scheme to encourage plastic recycling (as well as all other recycling) and thus start to improve our recycling figures which have been flat lining for far too long.
- That the council will use its best offices to work with all other local authorities in Devon to achieve a Devon wide consensus to see a similar system implemented by all collection authorities within the county.
- To write to both our members of Parliament and the European Parliament, and to the secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, urging them to consider legislation and regulations which will reduce the amount of single use plastic used by society.
- To use all links that we have with business in Teignbridge to encourage them to reduce the amount of plastic waste produced and specifically to contact our major supermarkets asking them to consider introducing a "plastic free aisle" in the local stores on a trial basis.

Councillor Hook, as proposer of the Motion, commented that action was required to stop and prevent marine pollution which was not only killing fish but birds and mammals. We should all be working towards the eradication of this contamination.

The Portfolio Holder for Environment Services stated that the target was to work towards zero avoidable waste by 2050; would be asking the Local Members of Parliament to lobby the Government; there was work already under way through the Devon Authorities Strategic Waste Committee to look for a preferred model waste collection scheme; need to educate and encourage the public; and waiting to see the results of East Devon District Council's three weekly residual waste collect scheme to assess the implications this could have for Teignbridge.

The Waste & Cleaning Manager stated that work had already started the audit of the use of single use plastics within the Council; the Council was actively educating the public both through its own specific communication channels and through the joint work undertaken through the 'Don't let Devon go to Waste' campaign; modelling was being done on three weekly residual bin collections and the performance of other authorities monitored; work was being undertaken to consider approaching the coffee shops in Newton Abbott to see if they could introduce a town branded reusable thermos type cup; and work was being done with Exeter and Torbay to collect and recycle marine litter. Councillor Hook was pleased to hear what the Council was already doing and suggested that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee form a working group to ensure that the Council was putting into place actions and monitoring them with regards to single use plastics.

The Executive acknowledged that more was needed to be done to address marine pollution and the use of single use plastics and supported the establishment of a Scrutiny Working Group to help address and monitor the situation.

**RESOLVED** that the motion be noted and that it is suggested to Overview and Scrutiny Committee that they set up a working group to help to address the use of single use plastics.

#### 422. REVISED DRAFT NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK CONSULTATION RESPONSE

The Principal Delivery Officer presented the report to consider the Government's proposed changes to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and confirm the Council's consultation response. The current framework was introduced in 2012, as part of a bid to reform the planning system and the revised draft framework for consultation was published on 5 March 2018.

Members were advised that the proposed NPPF changes focused on boosting housing supply and the main implication would be around the change to the delivery of new homes. They were advised of the key points:-

- Calculation of Housing Need
- Housing Delivery Test
- Five Year Housing Land Supply
- Explicit support for Joint Strategic Plans
- Introduction of more detailed Viability Guidance
- Develop allocations of varying sizes and custom build implications
- Redefining Affordable Housing
- Providing high quality broadband

An earlier version of the report had been considered at the Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 9 April 2018 and its comments and updates to the consultation were noted.

Members raised issues with regards to the public veto over wind energy development and the need for improved sustainable transport.

A Member thanked officers for their work on this consultation.

During discussion the Executive raised the following points:-

• Provision of Broadband

- Support for smaller business
- Work on the Greater Exeter Strategic Plan (GESP) and how this could affect the five year housing supply
- Land values being publicly available
- Potential to borrow against Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to put in place infrastructure before developments were started
- Affordable rented homes
- Need to ensure that the allocation of employment land was not lost to higher land values.

The Business Manager Strategic Place commented that no formal decision had been taken regarding whether the GESP would set out a single overall five year housing supply or if the authorities would have individual targets.

The Principal Delivery Officer responded to enquires as follows:-

- Local authorities were required to demonstrate five year supplies of deliverable housing sites; there was clarification required around deliverable sites where outline (but not detailed) planning permissions had been given
- There was a role for the Local Plan in the protective allocation of employment land
- The draft NPPF proposed that viability assessments should be published including land price
- There should be some flexibility to forward fund CIL Infrastructure

These points would be addressed though amendments to the consultation response.

**RESOLVED** that the draft response to the revised draft National Planning Policy Framework consultation that is set out at Appendix A with the additions from Executive be approved.

### 423. REVISED LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

The Business Manager Strategic Place presented the report which provided a revised timetable for the Local Development Scheme (LDS) Plan preparation. The timetable would be published on the Council's website and come into effect from the agreed date. Members were advised that the LDS was a statutory statement of the timetable for local plan preparation and it included the proposed timetable for the preparation of the Greater Exeter Strategic Plan (GESP). The GESP had been held up by a number of factors including the complexity of transport work and therefore the draft plan was proposed to be published in June 2019 which would also avoid issues associated with purdah. The other authorities that were part of GESP would be taking a report to update their LDS in the next couple of months.

The Executive supported the proposal.

**RESOLVED** that the Local Development Scheme be approved and be brought into effect from 8 May 2018.

# 424. LOCAL PLAN REVIEW: ISSUES CONSULTATION INCLUDING SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Councillor Bullivant declared an interest as his son is a Local Estate Agent and knew some of the landowners. He did not take part in the debate and did not vote (Code of Conduct for Members - Paragraph 14).

The Principal Planning Policy Officer presented the report to update Members on the Local Plan Review. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee had considered the Local Plan Review: Issues Paper and supporting documents on the 9 April 2018. The Teignbridge Local Plan 2020-2033 was adopted on the 6 May 2014 and the five years was therefore up in May 2019. The Local Plan Review Issues report and supporting documents included the Statement of Community Involvement, Settlement Boundary Review and Settlement Hierarchy Review. There would be a comprehensive consultation process which would include Council Members, Town and Parish Councils, Neighbourhood Planning Groups and other stakeholders during the eight week consultation period. The consultation process would include evenings and Saturday workshops.

Some Members raised the issue of new housing developments being self-sufficient with the provision of community facilities which would help reduce traffic movements and congestion; the need to ensure that there were affordable houses to rent as well as to buy; and suitable accommodation for the over 65's.

The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources commented that there was a viability issue with retail units on a number of the new estates.

The Principal Planning Policy Officer advised that the achievement with regards to affordable housing provision were detailed in the consultation document.

A Member thanked the officers for all their work in putting these consultation documents together.

The Executive noted that these documents which would now go out to public consultation.

#### RESOLVED that the;-

- a) Local Plan Review Issues Paper and supporting documents attached to this report be approved for public consultation between 21 May 2018 and 16 July 2018; and
- b) delegated authority be given the Strategic Place Business Manager to approve the Sustainability Appraisal (SA)/Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) and Habitat Regulation Assessment Scoping report for consultation between 21 May 2018 and 16 July 2018.

#### 425. TEIGNBRIDGE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2018 - 23

The Economy Manager presented the report which provided Members with the draft Economic Development Plan 2018-2023 and sought approval for the Plan to be the subject of public consultation. The plan had been developed to deliver commitments as set out in the Council's Strategy, in particular the 'Going to Town' and 'Investing in Prosperity'. The plan had input from the Economic Development Review Group of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Stakeholders would be consulted including Chambers of Commerce, business networking groups, Town and Parish Councils and neighbouring authorities.

The report had been considered at the Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 9 April 2018 and the comments with regards to engagement with schools and colleges and support for the regeneration of town centres would be included in the plan.

The Portfolio Holder for Environment Services commented that it was important that business rates remained affordable to ensure that small business could continue to thrive.

In response to Members' enquiries, the Economy Manager clarified that there was work being undertaken towards the installation of free Wi-Fi for anyone visiting the town centre of Newton Abbot and that comments on the Town Centre Manager Post for Teignmouth and Dawlish and all town centres regeneration would be taken into account.

The Executive welcomed and endorsed the plan for public consultation.

**RESOLVED** that the Teignbridge Economic Development Plan 2018-23 be approved for public consultation.

#### 426. DAWLISH WARREN CAR PARKS IMPROVEMENTS

The Business Manager, Strategic Place Economy & Assets presented the report to obtain the Executive's approval to invest funding to carry out improvement works at Dawlish Warren car parks.

Members were informed that there were areas within the Dawlish Warren car parks which required significant improvement works to alleviate health and safety issues and to extend the ongoing serviceability of this important Council asset. The planned works entailed resurfacing of the inner car park, filling potholes in the stone areas, improvements to drainage in both car parks, relining parking spaces and providing improved pedestrian walkways. There would be a marginal gain in spaces totalling 11.

Members were advised that the £220,000 capital expenditure would be funded by revenue contributions of £47,560 and capital receipts of up to £172,440 and a

tender had been produced and procured following a compliant procurement process.

In response to Members, the Business Manager, Strategic Place Economy & Assets clarified the time scales for the project and that the completion date was expected to be 20 July 2018 before the start of the summer school holidays.

The Executive welcomed and endorsed the improvements.

**RESOLVED** that the £220k capital expenditure, funded by revenue contributions of  $\pounds$ 47,560 and capital receipts of up to £172,440, for the improvement works at Dawlish Warren car park be approved and to award a contract following a compliant procurement process.

#### 427. EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN

Details were noted of the Forward Plan for the next 12 months.

Chairman